6

**APPELLANT'S FINAL BRIEF**

APPEAL FROM SPARTANBURG COUNTY

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Court Of Common Pleas

The Honorable Judge Gordon Cooper

Master In Equity

**RECEIVED**  
AUG 20 2019  
SC Court of Appeals

Appellate Case No 2017-002200

Circuit Court Case No.2010-CP-42-0587

Wells Fargo Bank, N. A.; Trustees for Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities I  
Trust 2004-BO1, John B. Kelchner ..... Respondents

V.

Legal Review to prove “Standing”.....	P. 6-8
Proper and Improper Endorsed Alonges .....	P. 8-9
Unclean hands... Intrinsic Fraud.....	P. 10-11
Guide to Evidence.....	P. 12-13
Issue Of “Due Process” In Law.....	P. 14-15
Mega charta.....	P. 16
Alonges, Conveyances, Endorsements .....	P. 16-18
Issue Of The Default Dates.....	P. 19
Issue of Redactions.....	P. 20
Issue of Insurance .....	P. 20
Conclusion.....	P. 20

**APPELLANT’S FINAL BRIEF**

**DESIGNATION OF MATTER TO BE  
INCLUDED IN THE APPELLANT’S FINAL BRIEF**

---

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

---

APPEAL FROM SPARTANBURG COUNTY  
COURT OF COMMON PLEAS  
The Honorable Judge Gordon Cooper

---

C/A No.; 2017-002200  
Circuit Court Case No. 2010-CP-42-0584

---

Wells Fargo Bank, N. A. as Trustees for Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities I Trust  
2004-BOI..... Respondents

Betty L. Tangeman, Barry D. Malleck, and Alice R. Mallick, Marghretta Shisko, and Delbert R.  
Tangeman..... Defendants

Of whom Delbert R. Tangeman is the .....Appellant

- 1. Respondent's **Appendix “A”**, Notice for summary judgment, 2. Notice to “Open the Case”
- 3. Order of Oct. 7, 2017, Denying Motion to Open the Case, 4. Transcript added.
- 5. **Legal Standing Statutes & Legal Review of Standing related to the transcript**
- 6. **Fraudulent Statements by Attorney and Judge Cooper** “ “ “ “
- 7. **Due Process “Denial of Due of Process” and “Foreclosure Process”** “
- 8. **Alonges issue and “Legal Conveyances and Endorsements”** “
- 9. Appellant's’ brief in response to the transcript
- 10. Appellant's exhibits pages 1-13

I certify that this designation contains no matter which is irrelevant.

**August 19, 2019**

Delbert Tangeman 104 Riverside Lane Duncan, SC 29334 (864)303-4282



## INITIAL STATEMENT

To: Mr. Griffin, Mr. Schulz and John Kelchner...That was quite a shotgun blast (both barrels) all to a closed Appellate case No. 2017-001799, which Tangeman initiated and shortly thereafter dismissed, dated October 16, 2017. Attached at **Exhibit 7**.

Tangeman erred in attempting to appeal Judge Cooper's order denying Tangeman's **MOTION TO RECONSIDER**. Instead, Tangeman responded to Mr. Kelchner's "**NOTICE OF HEARING...to open the case**"... SCHEDULED FOR SEPTEMBER 25TH, 2017.

### ISSUE OF STANDING & REVIEW OF LEGAL STANDING

Respondents made no believable response to negate "Standing." Mr. Kelchner: (Lines 9 and 11 page 3) regarding "**Standing**." Plaintiff did not produce an original note to Defendant Tangeman (line 11 p.3 plaintiff stated "We had the original note at the hearing". **PLAINTIFF PERJURED HIMSELF!**) Plaintiff produced only this multiple copies. (ref. p.2, lines 17-20) When one starts copying multiple times, one can arrange a fake note any way one wishes. (Nowhere in lines 4 thru 21 did the Plaintiff deny that statement.) The plaintiff did not produce the original note at the "Hearing" as he stated. The statement was untrue! Was that Perjury? fraud? or both? Rule F.-- 2 was that an intent to deceive? Therefore, without the original note, **the plaintiff has no standing.**

## **LEGAL REVIEW IN ORDER TO PROVE “STANDING**

1. “**INJURY:** The plaintiff must have suffered or imminently will suffer injury. The injury must not be abstract and must be within the zone of interests meant to be regulated or protected under the statutory or constitutional guarantee in question.”

A. The injury was self-inflicted. GMAC sent back to Appellant payments amounting to more than \$6,800.00. Therefore, Appellant just gave up and quit sending payments. (Exhibit # 4)

B. After several years, the debt grew so large that it passed the real value of the property. Respondent sent to various Attorneys applications for “LOAN MODIFICATION”. None responded...Those efforts went nowhere!

2. “**CAUSATION:**” The injury must be reasonably connected to the defendant’s conduct.”

There is no “reasonability factor” that could possibly be the fault of the Appellant. He made every reasonable effort to send GMAC payments due them, but GMAC kept returning them. GMAC’s injury was self-inflicted!

The fault was that **GMAC was a predatory Lender.** “A Wicked Default is the third most common form of wrongful foreclosure we see is when a lender, takes nefarious action to put a loan into default, resulting in a

C. situation where the borrower is unable to cure the default. Maybe, the lender declined payments, such as was done by GMAC... Maybe, because of a catch clause in the contract, which escalated the interest rate way too high. Thereby forcing a default.

There are generally three ways to attack these types of loans: to attack based on fraud, to attack based on usury, and to attack based on improper foreclosure proceeding...and the Appellant intends to pursue those and more.

The fault is also in the law that President Bill Clinton passed, requiring lenders to approve mortgages to mortgagees even if they had little or no income. Hence, the year 2008 financial collapse of many banks.

3. **“REDRESSABILITY:”** A favorable court decision must be likely to redress the injury.

A. Now the larger, bigger, vulture Banks, like Wells Fargo, are “unreasonably” and unjustly seizing properties from Appellants like myself whose incomes were dependant upon tenants whom the subprime lenders took away from them.

B. Where is the justice and fairness in the law to favor “Redressability” when GMAC and even Bear Stearns committed legal suicide by filing for Bankruptcy!? Therefore, Appellant Prays the Court to find in his favor!

4. **“OTHER REQUIREMENTS:** There are other requirements imposed by the Appeals Court and made law:

- A. A party may only assert his or her own rights and cannot raise the claims of a third party who is not before the court.
- B. If the court deems that Wells Fargo has not passed the "no Space test," or intrinsic fraud, or due process clauses as legal holder of said "**NOTE**" then, does that mean that all other holders of the NOTE become third parties who are not before the court?
- C.

**PROPER vs. IMPROPER ENDORSED ALONGES**

Properly endorsed allonges **MUST MEET THE "NO SPACE" TEST AS REQUIRED BY SOUTH CAROLINA LAW.**

Both, the attorney for Wells Fargo and the judge are guilty of "misleading the court..."

in that." Intrinsic fraud is defined as "fraud which misleads a court in determining issues and induces the court to find for the party perpetrating the fraud. (SEE PAGE 3 LINES 11 AND 12 WHEREIN RESPONDENT STATED "WE HAD THE ORIGINAL NOTE AT THE HEARING AND. A PROPERLY ENDORSED NOTE...." NEITHER STATEMENT WAS TRUE! WHY DID HE NOT SHOW ME THE NOTE? NEITHER WAS IT PROPERLY "ENDORSED." Even though Judge Cooper confirmed the endorsements were "proper" (see p.5, lines 4 & 5 in the transcript) THERE WAS TOTAL DISREGARD FOR THE "NO SPACE" RULE & LOOSE PAGES AS REQUIRED BY S.C. LAW.

## **MISLEADING STATEMENTS BY RESPONDENT AND THE COURT**

Therefore, both the attorney and the Court made misleading statements.

This is a classic case of intrinsic fraud regarding perjured testimony or “presenting forged documents at trial. Allegations that a party failed to disclose documents also generally amount to intrinsic, rather than extrinsic, fraud.” 2 Raby v. Orr, 358 S.C. 10, 594 S.E.2d 478 (2004) (Intrinsic fraud was misrepresentation about accounting practices), Bowman v. Bowman, 375 S.C. 146, 591 S.E.2d 654 (Ct. App. 2004)(Intrinsic fraud was failure to disclose information about retirement account), Chewning v. Ford Motor Co., 354 S.C. 72, 79 S.E.2d 605 (2003)(Fraud upon the court by an attorney, whether or not intrinsic or extrinsic, can be used to set aside a prior judgment), Chewning v. Ford Motor Co., 345 S.C. 28, 550 S.E.2d 584 (Ct. App. 2001)(**Fraud upon the court by an attorney, whether or not intrinsic or extrinsic, can be used to set aside a prior judgment** and court declined to follow reasoning of Bankers Trust v. Braten, 317 S.C. 547, 455 S.E. 2d 199 (Ct. App. 1995)), Hagy v. Pruitt, 339 S.C. 425, 529 S.E.2d 714 (2000) ...

“Intrinsic fraud is defined as “fraud which misleads a court in at 82, 579 S.determining issues and induces the court to find for the party perpetrating the fraud. The classic case of intrinsic fraud is perjured testimony or presenting forged documents at trial. Allegations that a party failed to disclose documents also generally amount to intrinsic, rather than extrinsic, fraud.” Raby Const. LLP v. Orr; 358 S.C. 10, 594 S.E.2d 478 (2004)(citing Chewning, 354 S.C. E.2d at 6

## UNCLEAN HANDS

“Buckley may provide the practitioner with a recent equitable argument issued by our Supreme Court which does not look favorably upon those who are undeserving and who try to use the court rules to obtain a benefit they do not deserve. “

Wells Fargo has very “UNCLEAN HANDS.” WELLS FARGO CURRENTLY VS. BANK OF AMERICA, U.S. BANK, BB&T, Chase Bank, Credit Zendore, Regions Bank and Mortgage Bank. That says nothing about two (2) class action lawsuits currently going forward with Wells fargo’s illegal deceptions with their own depositors and their continued practice of forcing mortgagees to continue paying on mortgages after they are paid off. .

Recently our Supreme Court relied upon the equitable principle of unclean hands. The Court cited First Union Nat’l Bank of S.C. v. Soden, which held that the doctrine of unclean hands will preclude a litigant from recovering in equity if that litigant acted unfairly.

**“Federal Rule 60(b)(3)**, by its express terms, permits judgments to be set aside for fraud, whether the fraud is intrinsic or extrinsic.” Mr. G. v. Mrs. G, 320 S.C. 305, 465 S.E.2d 101 (Ct. App. 1995), fn. 2. (emphasis added). Chewing

v. Ford Motor Co., 345 S.C. 28, 550 S.E.2d 584 (Ct. App. 2001)(Fraud upon the court by an attorney, whether or not intrinsic or extrinsic, can be used to set aside a prior judgment and court declined to follow reasoning of Bankers Trust v. Braten, 317 S.C. 547, 455 S.E. 2d 199 (Ct. App. 1995).

“Litigants should lose cases when the facts or the rules of substantive law are against them. They should not lose because their lawyer and judge disagreed on some fine point of evidence law.” E. Warrant Moise, *Credibility and Character Evidence: History, Policy and Procedure* ( attachment” require? Physical Attachment New York UCC §3-202(2) states: “**An indorsement must be written by or on behalf of the holder and on the instrument or on a paper so firmly affixed thereto as to become a part thereof.**” This requirement tightened the NIL’s previous requirement that the indorsement “be written on the instrument itself or upon a paper attached thereto. **The change was deliberate, apparently designed to assure the indorsement would travel with the instrument.** This, it was thought, would “protect subsequent purchasers from the risk that the present holder or a previous holder has negotiated the instrument to someone outside the apparent chain of title through a separate document”<sup>18</sup>...(Respondents had only one “**Allonge**” and that was an assignment from **Bank One** but the allonge does not address to whom the assigned firm was. All the others were assignments of mortgages, not the “note.”) (see Exhibits 11 thru 13)...by Lawrence

## A GUIDE TO S.C. EVIDENCE 93 (1967) BY MELISA F. BROEN

“2003)(citing James F. Dreher, A Guide to S.C. Evidence 93 (1967)

Raby v. Orr, 358 S.C. 10, 594 S.E.2d 478 (2004) (Intrinsic fraud was misrepresentation about accounting practices), Bowman v. Bowman, 375 S.C. 146, 591 S.E.2d 654 (Ct. App. 2004)(Intrinsic fraud was failure to disclose information about retirement account), Chewning v. Ford Motor Co., 354 S.C. 72, 79 S.E.2d 605 (2003)(Fraud upon the court by an attorney, whether or not intrinsic or extrinsic, can be used to set aside a prior judgment), Chewning v. Ford Motor Co., 345 S.C. 28, 550 S.E.2d 584 (Ct. App. 2001)(Fraud upon the court by an attorney Raby v. Orr, 358 S.C. 10, 594 S.E.2d 478 (2004) (Intrinsic fraud was misrepresentation about accounting practices), Bowman v. Bowman,

1. 375 S.C. 146, 591 S.E.2d 654 (Ct. App. 2004)(Intrinsic fraud was failure to disclose information about retirement account), Chewning v. Ford Motor Co., 354 S.C. 72, 79 S.E.2d 605 (2003)(Fraud upon the court by an attorney, whether or not intrinsic or extrinsic, can be used to set aside a prior judgment), Chewning v. Ford Motor Co., 345 S.C. 28, 550 S.E.2d 584 (Ct. App. 2001)(Fraud upon the court by an attorney, whether or not intrinsic or extrinsic, can be used to set aside a prior judgment and court
2. declined to follow reasoning of Bankers Trust v. Braten, 317 S.C. 547,

3. 455 S.E. 2d 199 (Ct. App. 1995)), Hagy v. Pruitt, 339 S.C. 425, 529 S.E.2d 714 (2000) (Misrepresentation to obtain consent for adoption is extrinsic fraud but party failed to prove extrinsic fraud here by clear and convincing evidence), Mr. G. v. Mrs. G, 320 S.C. 305, 465 S.E.2d 101 (Ct. App. 1995)(Misrepresentation about parentage is intrinsic fraud), Evans v. Gunter, 294 S.C. 525, 366 S.E.2d 44 (Ct. App. 1988)(Perjury was intrinsic fraud but court also found extrinsic fraud where a party was induced to sign a waiver form which denied his opportunity to be heard), Hilton Head Center of SC, Inc. v. Public Service Commission of SC, 294 S.C. 9, 362 S.E.2d 176 (1987)(Intrinsic fraud was misrepresentation), Ex Parte Corley, 247 S.C. 179, 146 S.E.2d 609 (1966)(Intrinsic fraud was perjury and false testimony), Bryan v. Bryan, 220 S.C. 164, 66 S.E.2d 609 (1951)(Intrinsic fraud was perjured testimony). 3 Raby Const. LLP v. Orr; 358 S.C. 10, 594 S.E.2d 478 (2004)(citing Chewning, 354 S.C. at 82, 579 S.E.2d at 610- 11). See, e.g., Bryan v. Bryan, 220 S.C. at 169, 66 S.E.2d at 611; James F. Flanagan, South Carolina Civil Procedure at 485 (2d ed. 1996). 4 Id. 358 S.C. at 19, 594 S.E.2d at 483(citing Chewning, 354 S.C. at 81, 579 S.E.2d 610). 5 Id. 358 S.C. at 19, 594 S.E.2d at 482 (citing Chewning, supra). 6 Id. 358 S.C. at 18, 594 S.E.2d at 482 (As long as intrinsic fraud is relevant or can be used to attack a witness, whether or not intrinsic or extrinsic, can be used to set aside a case.” -Melissa F.

## **DUE PROCESS OF LAW**

“The Respondents deprived the Appellant of “Due Process” when they seized his property just a few days after the lower court’s “ORDER” was issued/published.

“This act set aside a prior judgment and court declined to follow reasoning of Bankers Trust v. Braten, 317 S.C. 547, 455 S.E. 2d 199 (Ct. App. 1995)), Hagy v. Pruitt, 339 S.C. 425, 529 S.E.2d 714 (2000).”

The lower Court issued an “**ORDER FOR WRIT OF ASSISTANCE FOR DEFENDANTS ONLY.**” (SEE EXHIBIT 8) This order was dated “the 17th day of November, 2017”, even though the Respondents Attorney had been informed before the judge that the defendant was taking this to the Court of Appeals. (at

The residence was a duplex rented to two (2) tenants who were evicted instead of the Defendants. The residence was stripped of appliances, some glass windows were broken, and most likely all the wiring and copper pipes torn out.

(Note: The succeeding was copied from a N.Y. Law Journal verbatim) “*A fundamental, constitutional guarantee that all legal proceedings will be fair and that one will be given notice of the proceedings and an opportunity to be heard before the government acts to take away one’s life, liberty, or property. Also, a constitutional guarantee that a law shall not be unreasonable, arbitrary, or capricious.*”

**“The constitutional guarantee of due process of law, found in the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution, prohibits all levels of government from arbitrarily or unfairly depriving individuals of their basic constitutional rights to life, liberty, and property. The due process clause of the Fifth Amendment, ratified in 1791, asserts that no person shall "be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law." This amendment restricts the powers of the federal government and applies only to actions by it. The Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment, ratified in 1868, declares, "[N]or shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law" (§ 1). This clause limits the powers of the states, rather than those of the federal government.**

**“The Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment has also been interpreted by the U.S. Supreme Court in the twentieth century to incorporate protections of the Bill of Rights, so that those protections apply to the states as well as to the federal government. Thus, the Due Process Clause serves as the means whereby the Bill of Rights has become binding on state governments as well as on the federal government. The concept of due process originated in English Common Law. The rule that individuals shall not be deprived of life, liberty, or property without notice and an opportunity to defend themselves predates written constitutions and was widely accepted in England.**

(Appellant did not receive any notice served by a licensed or unlicensed server for either the **Complaint** nor the **Writ**.)

## THE MEGNA CHARTA

"An agreement, signed in 1215 that defined the rights of English subjects against the king, is an early example of a constitutional guarantee of due process. That document includes a clause that declares, "No free man shall be seized, or imprisoned ... except by the lawful judgment of his peers, or by the law of the land" (ch. 39). This concept of the law of the land was later transformed into the phrase "due process of law." By the seventeenth century, England's North American colonies were using the phrase "due process of law" in their statutes.

"The application of constitutional due process is traditionally divided into the two categories of Substantive Due Process and procedural due process. These categories are derived from a distinction that is made between two types of law. Substantive Law creates, defines, and regulates rights, whereas procedural law enforces those rights or seeks redress for their violation. Thus, in the United States, substantive due process is concerned with such issues as Equal Protection and privacy, whereas procedural due process is concerned with provisions such as the right to adequate notice of a lawsuit, the right to be present during testimony, and the right to an attorney.

## ALONGES

"Though prevalent, these practices do not meet the technical requirements of the New York Uniform Commercial Code to make the transferee of a promissory note its "holder." The potential result: unnecessary and totally avoidable legal issues if the purchaser or pledgee

ever needs to establish it holds the note. **For example, in a foreclosure, these imperfections might let the borrower defeat a motion for summary judgment by claiming the plaintiff does not validly hold the loan.** The problem arises from a careful reading of the technical requirements of the UCC as in effect in New York (New York UCC).<sup>2</sup> New York is one of only two states (**S.C. see # 16 below**) that still use the antiquated 1951 version of UCC Article 3.3 The 'No-Space Test' Under any UCC, if a transferee (whether buyer or secured party) wants to become a "holder"<sup>4</sup> of a negotiable instrument<sup>5</sup> —or, better, a "holder in due course"<sup>6</sup>—the transferor must first duly "negotiate" the instrument to the new holder. Negotiation of a negotiable<sup>7</sup> instrument requires delivery of the instrument to the holder with any necessary indorsement.<sup>8</sup> Being a holder (even "in due course") of an instrument is not necessarily the same as owning it, though some courts do not grasp the distinction.<sup>9</sup> An indorsement on the front or back of an instrument will unquestionably meet the test for "negotiation." A separate piece of paper— today's industry standard, the "allonge"—raises legal issues that impair its effectiveness as a valid indorsement. First, ancient principles of commercial law, possibly still good law in New York, prohibit use of any additional piece of paper for an indorsement as long as enough space remains to write the indorsement somewhere on the instrument itself (the "No-Space Test"). Second, even when the law allows a separate indorsement, the New York UCC literally requires an allonge to be "firmly affixed" to the instrument, a requirement that today's practice generally flunks. Historically, the law disfavored use of an allonge to indorse an instrument. The majority view under all of the "law merchant,"<sup>10</sup> the Uniform Negotiable Instruments Law (NIL),<sup>11</sup> and the common law applied the No-Space Test.<sup>12</sup> An overwhelming majority of courts in other states that have expressly considered this issue have repeatedly interpreted the 1951 version of UCC §3-202 to carry forward the No-Space Test<sup>P.8</sup>.

“On the other hand, quite a few cases have allowed a separate allonge under these circumstances.<sup>14</sup> Only a few of these cases expressly considered whether a particular instrument still had room for an indorsement.<sup>15</sup>

These cases generally upheld an allonge without discussing the **No-Space Test**. No New York case expressly decides whether the New York UCC includes a No-Space Test. A few New York cases on allonges, #16 and a few from out of state applying the 1951 UCC, do not consider whether the instrument still had enough space for an indorsement. The Official Text of Revised Article 3 does not directly address a No-Space Test. But Official Comment 1 to Revised Section 3-204 says: “An indorsement on an allonge is valid even though there is sufficient space on the instrument for an indorsement.” If New York enacted the Revised UCC, any concern about a No-Space Test would diminish to the vanishing point. **But New York, along with only South Carolina, hasn’t done that.** \_ at least a lingering concern in New York. And if lenders want to identify and mitigate every possible legal risk in their documents—as they do—they should assume, conservatively, that New York has a No Space Test.<sup>17</sup> If New York law does not have a No-Space Test, or if a particular transaction has satisfied the test, counsel must then ask two more questions before using an allonge.

“Must the parties physically attach the allonge to the instrument being endorsed? If so, what does “physically attached” mean? (Note: there **ain’t no** staple mark on the respondent’s **Fake Note!**) (see exhibit 9 & 10). \_\_\_\_\_ **P. 18**

## THE ISSUE OF THE DEFAULT DATE

### GMAC STARTED THE DEFAULT, NOT THE TANGEMANS

(See Exhibit No. Four (4) Wherein GMAC began returning all of Tangemans checks as listed on Exhibit (4). Also see the bottom of (Exhibit No. (5) where the first check returned to the Tangemans was dated 01/07/2008. Does the three (3) year statute of limitation which began to run from the date of default which was Jan. 7, 2008. **Does that three (3) statute stop the clock by which a legal complaint by the court can no longer file said complaint???** See check at the bottom of **exhibit 5.**(See Plaintiff words, page 4, lines 4-13 and lines 16-21 **exhibit # 2 attached**). The original Summons was filed November 3, 2010, when the current docket No. ending in 05847 was first issued (See Exhibit # 3). The Plaintiff is simply using undocumented dates out of thin air and certainly much more than six (6) months. More like (9) years. **Not six (6) months as implied.** Also see (Exhibit No. five (5) which confirms the Jan. 7th, 2008 as beginning the date of Default

HOWEVER, WELLS FARGO BANK AND ATTORNEY  
KELCHNER WITH THE HUTCHENS LAW FIRM DID NOT START ACTION  
UNTIL MAY 5, 2017 (SEE EXHIBIT 6)...THAT'S NINE (9 YEARS AND  
FIVE MONTH SINCE THE DATE OF DEFAULT! Roger Townsend & Thomas Law  
Firm reconstituted the case No, as 10-CP-42-5847 which began January 19, 2011. (see **Exhibit  
No. three (3)**). That created two cases active at the same time...with the Bradley & Arant Law  
Firm from Charlotte, N.C. That case was heard by Judge Mark Hayes at about the same time.

## ISSUE OF REGARDING REDACTIONS

The account number on the fraudulent note was blacked out, see attached "Note" as **(Exhibit 1)**. THE LAST 3 OR 4 DIGITS of an account number should remain in order to show proof or originality of the note. Too much redaction leads me to to be suspicious of the note's originality. The defendant is the one who must physically see the note. The last four digits of my Social Security number is out there for every loan, bank account and credit accounts.

## ISSUE OF INSURANCE

From the beginning of the default which actually was January of 2008, **(Exhibit # 5)**, GMAC began including Fire and Hazard Insurance as did all the succeeding buyers of said note. If you multiply \$500 to \$700 per year for bank added insurance, it probably was more than \$10,000.00. So where is that hidden in those figures Well Fargo Bank gave attorney Kelchner? (See Lines 9-11 page 3).

## CONCLUSION

The Appellant has proven, with convincing and conclusive evidence, that both the lower Court Judge, and, Plaintiff misled the proceedings, and, thereby **prejudiced** the appellant with their false statements regarding: the **legality of the note, Standing, Alonges, and Due Process**. Therefore, Appellant pleads the Justices to reverse the lower Court's decision.