**THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals**

**APPEAL FROM SPARTANBURG COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas
The Honorable Gordon G. Cooper
Master in Equity**

**Appellate Case No. 2017-002200
Circuit Court Case No. 2010-CP-42-05847**

RECEIVED

APR 02 2018

SC Court of Appeals

**Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as Trustee for Bear
Stearns Asset Backed Securities I Trust 2004-BO1**

Respondent

v.

**Betty L. Tangeman, Barry D. Mallek, Alice R. Mallek,
Donald Coggins, and Jr Delbert R. Tangeman**

Defendants

Of Whom Delbert R. Tangeman is the

Appellant

INITIAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

**Michael C. Griffin (SC Bar No. 72868)
Jonathan E. Schulz (SC Bar No. 79850)
BRADLEY ARANT BOULT CUMMINGS LLP

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Tangeman appeals the denial of his Motion to Reconsider the prior Summary Judgment Order. In his Motion to Reconsider, Tangeman did not clarify whether he was asserting a Rule 59(e) motion – seeking to alter or amend the Summary Judgment Order – or a Rule 60(b) motion – seeking relief from judgment. The trial court evaluated the Motion to Reconsider under both possible standards and was well within its discretion in denying the Motion to Reconsider.

When construing the Motion to Reconsider as a Rule 59(e) motion, the trial court did not abuse its discretion by applying the plain language of the rule – which required Tangeman to serve the motion within ten (10) days of receiving the written Summary Judgment Order – and concluding that the Rule 59(e) motion was untimely. The trial court likewise did not abuse its discretion by concluding, in the alternative, that the Motion to Reconsider failed to meet the requirements of Rule 59(e) in any event, even if it were timely, which it was not.

When construing the Motion to Reconsider as a Rule 60(b) motion, the trial court did not abuse its discretion by concluding that Tangeman merely reasserted affirmative defenses previously made and ruled upon, and therefore failed to present any evidence in support of the relevant factors warranting relief under Rule 60(b).

ARGUMENT

I. The Trial Court Did Not Abuse its Discretion in Concluding that Appellant's Motion to Reconsider – When Construed as a SCRCP 59(e) Motion to Alter or Amend – was Untimely.

This Court reviews the denial of a motion to alter or amend pursuant to SCRCP 59(e) under an abuse of discretion standard. *See Pollard v. Cnty. of Florence*, 314 S.C. 397, 402, 444 S.E.2d 534, 536 (1994). The trial court did not abuse its discretion by applying the plain language of SCRCP 59(e).

Under SCRCP 59(e), “[a] motion to alter or amend the judgment shall be served not later than 10 days after receipt of written notice of the entry of the order.” According to the Master in Equity, the written Summary Judgment Order was served on Tangeman on May 23, 2017. (Order Denying Motion to Reconsider at p.2). However – according to the Appellant himself – Tangeman did not serve the Motion to Reconsider until June 15, 2017, which is twenty-three (23) days after Tangeman received written notice of the Summary Judgment Order. (Motion to Reconsider Certificate of Service) The trial court did not abuse its discretion in concluding that Tangeman’s “Motion [to Reconsider] was not timely filed.” (Order Denying Motion to Reconsider at p.2).

In any event, Tangeman does not challenge the trial court’s conclusion that the Motion to Reconsider was untimely. He makes no argument on appeal disputing either (a) the date he received written notice of the Summary Judgment Order, or (b) the date he served his Motion to Reconsider. For this reason alone, this Court should affirm the Master in Equity’s Order Denying Motion to Reconsider. *See Lindsay v. Lindsay*, 328 S.C. 329, 338, 491 S.E.2d 583, 588 (1997) (“It is a fundamental rule of law that an appellate court will affirm a ruling by a lower court if the offended party does not challenge that ruling.”).

II. Even if Appellant’s Motion to Reconsider – Construed as a Rule 59(e) Motion—were Not Untimely, the Trial Court Nevertheless Did Not Abuse its Discretion in Denying the Motion.

Based solely on the untimeliness of Tangeman’s Motion to Reconsider, the Court should affirm the Order Denying the Motion to Reconsider and need not consider any additional arguments. Nevertheless, even if Tangeman’s Motion to Reconsider were not untimely, which it was, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in denying it.

Motions to alter or amend under Rule 56(e) enable litigants to ask a court to “reconsider or rule on” issues the litigant believes the court, in its first consideration of the issues, either “misunderstood, failed to fully consider, or perhaps failed to rule on.” *Elam v. S.C. Dep’t of Transp.*, 361 S.E. 9, 24, 602 S.E.2d 772, 780 (2004). Ignoring this framework, Tangeman does not contend on appeal that the trial court abused its discretion by misunderstanding or failing to fully consider certain issues. Instead, Appellant’s Initial Brief is a mere regurgitation of his Motion to Reconsider. These issues were fully and properly ruled on by the trial court in denying the Motion to Reconsider. Accordingly, the trial court did not abuse its discretion.

For instance, on appeal, Tangeman makes two separate arguments – captioned “Regarding the Issue of Standing” and “Regarding Assignments Attached to the Note” – in which Tangeman contends that Wells Fargo is not the real party in interest and did not have the right to foreclose on the Property due to its use of a copy of the original Note at the Summary Judgement hearing (rather than using the original) and due to alleged improprieties relating to the various assignments of the Note (such as the absence of staple marks on the Note). (Appellant’s Initial Brief at pp.6–7). Tangeman also challenges on appeal various redactions made to the Note to protect personally identifiable information, explaining that “[t]oo much redaction leads [sic] me to be suspicious of the note’s orriginality [sic].” (*Id.* at p.6). Tangeman made these same arguments to the Master in Equity (*see* Motion to Reconsider ¶¶ 3, 5) and the Master in Equity properly addressed these

arguments by concluding, based on ample evidence in the record, that Wells Fargo “established that it was the holder of the subject loan with the right to bring the within action by presenting a properly endorsed Note, Mortgage, and correct chain of assignments of the Mortgage,” (Order Denying Motion to Reconsider at p.3).

Similarly, Appellant’s Initial Brief asks this Court to apply a three-year statute of limitations to Wells Fargo’s foreclosure action. (*See* Appellant’s Initial Brief at p.7). However, Appellant made this argument in his Motion to Reconsider (Motion to Reconsider at ¶ 4) and the trial court properly concluded that “[t]he statute of limitations cited by Defendant is not applicable to mortgage foreclosure actions.” (Order Denying Motion to Reconsider at p.3; *cf. Suttles v. Wood*, 280 S.C. 272, 274, 312 S.E.2d 574, 576 (Ct. App. 1984) (explaining that twenty-year statute of limitations set forth in S.C. Code Ann. § 15-3-520 applies to foreclosure actions)).⁵

Finally, Appellant’s Initial Brief contends that GMAC somehow “started the default” by returning payments to Tangeman. (Appellant’s Initial Brief at p.8). Tangeman made this same argument in his Motion to Reconsider. (Motion to Reconsider at ¶¶ 1–2). Tangeman does not explain, and it is unclear, how or why these alleged actions, even if true, would support an alteration or amendment to the Summary Judgment Order. In any event, the trial court addressed this argument by properly concluding that Wells Fargo “presented sufficient evidence reflecting

⁵ In any event, as the trial court correctly noted, the foreclosure action was filed “within six (6) months of the default of payment.” (September 25, 2017 Hearing Transcript at p. 4, line 19; *see* Complaint ¶ 13). Thus, under either statute of limitations – three years or twenty years – Respondent’s foreclosure action was timely.

the existence of a contract, the breach of said contract, and its damages resulting from that breach.”⁶

For these reasons, even if Appellant’s Motion to Reconsider were not untimely – which it was – the trial court was well within its discretion in denying the Motion to Reconsider.

III. The Trial Court Did Not Abuse its Discretion in Concluding that Appellant’s Motion to Reconsider – When Construed as a SCRCP 60(b) Motion for Relief from Judgment – Failed to Present any Relevant Argument or Evidence Necessary for Relief under that Rule.

Even if Tangeman’s Motion to Reconsider were construed as a Rule 60(b) motion for relief from judgment, it was nevertheless properly denied. Like its review of decisions on Rule 59(e) motions, this Court, “in reviewing a decision with respect to Rule 60(b) . . . utilizes a deferential standard of review,” *Auto Owners Ins. Co. v. Rhodes*, 405 S.C. 584, 594–95, 748 S.E.2d 781, 786 (2013), in which this Court’s review is “limited to determining whether there was an abuse of discretion,” *BB & T v. Taylor*, 369 S.C. 548, 551, 633 S.E.2d 501, 502–03 (2006). Abuse of discretion in this context “arises where the judge issuing the order was controlled by an error of law or where the order is based on factual conclusions that are without evidentiary support.” *Id.* at 551, 633 S.E.2d at 503.

⁶ Appellant’s Initial Brief also includes the following argument: “From the beginning of the default . . . GMAC began including fire and Hazard Insurance as did all the succeeding buyers of said note. If you multiply \$500 to \$700 per year for bank added insurance [sic] probably more than \$10,000.00. So where is that hidden [sic] in those figures Wells Fargo bank gave to attorney Kelchner?” (Appellant’s Initial Brief at p.8). Tangeman made an argument about insurance in his Motion to Reconsider, but it was limited to a contention that “Tangeman’s have always maintained property insurance.” (Motion to Reconsider at ¶ 2). Because Tangeman did not argue in his Motion to Reconsider that GMAC “includ[ed] fire and Hazard Insurance” in some unspecified way, the Court should not consider this argument on appeal. *See Tri-Cnty. Ice & Fuel Co. v. Palmetto Ice Co.*, 303 S.C. 237, 242, 399 S.E.2d 779, 783 (1990) (“As this claim was not raised below, it will not be considered for the first time on appeal.”).

Under Rule 60(b), a litigant can seek and obtain relief from an order in the event of mistake, inadvertence, surprise, excusable neglect, newly discovered evidence, fraud, misrepresentations, or other misconduct of an adverse party, *see* SCRCP 60(b)(1–3), or where the judgment is void or has been satisfied, released, or discharged, *see* SCRCP 60(b)(4–5). Importantly, however, “[t]he movant in a Rule 60(b) motion has the burden of presenting evidence proving the facts essential to entitle [him] to relief.” *BB & T*, 369 S.C. at 552, 633 S.E.2d at 503.

Tangeman presented no evidence of any of these relevant Rule 60(b) factors in his Motion to Reconsider. (*See* Motion to Reconsider). To the contrary, Tangeman merely restated the same arguments that he made at prior stages of this case, as the trial court concluded. (*See* Order on Motion to Reconsider at p.2 (“Defendant bases his Motion on a recitation of affirmative defenses previously made in his responsive pleadings”)).⁷ Accordingly, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in concluding that the re-assertion of old arguments did not satisfy any of the Rule 60(b) factors:

Defendant offers no evidence that the Judgment should be set aside by virtue of mistake, inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect. Likewise, Defendant presented no newly discovered evidence nor sufficiently alleged any fraud, misrepresentation, or other conduct by an adverse party justifying reconsideration of the Judgment. The Judgment is not void nor has it been satisfied, released, or discharged.

(Order Denying Motion to Reconsider at p.3). Indeed, Appellant’s Initial Brief does not even contend that the arguments Tangeman asserted in his Motion to Reconsider satisfied one or more